
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Licensing Committee (Non Licensing Act 
2003 Functions) 

Date: 4 March 2010 

Time: 3.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Cobb (Chairman), Lepper (Deputy Chair), West, 
Harmer-Strange, Hawkes, Hyde, Kitcat, Marsh, 
Older, Phillips, Pidgeon, Simson, C Theobald, 
Watkins and Wrighton 

Contact: Jane Clarke 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291064 
jane.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout                    

Public Seating 

Press 

Councillor 
Wrighton 

Councillor 
Marsh 

Councillor 
Hawkes 

Councillor 
Lepper 

Councillor 
Older 

Councillor 
Hyde 

Councillor 
Pidgeon 

Councillor 
Mrs 

Theobald 

Councillor 
Phillips 

Councillor 
Mrs Cobb 

Lawyer Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Public 
Speaker 

Councillor 
Harmer-
Strange 

 

Head of 
Department 

Councillor 
Simson 

Councillor 
Watkins 

Councillor 
Kitcat 

Councillor 
West 

Member 
Speaking 



LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

18. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes - Where Councillors are unable to attend a 
meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may 
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 

interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading either that it is confidential or the category under which the 
information disclosed in the report is exempt from disclosure and 
therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the categories of exempt information is 
available for public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

19. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 10 

 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 26 November 2009 (copy 
attached). 

 

 

20. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

21. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon on Thursday 
25 February 2010). 
 
No public questions received by date of publication. 

 

 

22. TAXI MARSHALS 11 - 14 

 Report of the Director of Environment (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Jean Cranford Tel: 29-2550  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 



LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

 

23. BLUE BOOK REVIEW 15 - 20 

 Report of the Director of Environment (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Martin Seymour Tel: 296659  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

24. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO COUNCIL  

 To consider items to be submitted to the 18 March 2010 Council meeting 
for information. 
 
In accordance with Procedural Rule 24.3a the Committee may determine 
that any item is to be included in its report to Council.  In addition each 
Minority Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying 
the Chief Executive by 10.00am on 8 March 2010. 

 

 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Jane Clarke, (01273 
291064, email jane.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Wednesday, 24 February 2010 

 

 

 



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
(NON LICENSING ACT 2003 
FUNCTIONS) 

Agenda Item 19 
 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 
 

3.00PM 26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Cobb (Chairman), Lepper (Deputy Chairman), Allen, Harmer-Strange, 
Hawkes, Hyde, Kitcat, Older, Phillips, Pidgeon, Simson, C Theobald, Watkins, West and 
Wrighton 
 
Apologies: Councillors Marsh 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

9. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
9a. Declarations of Substitutes 
 
9.1 Councillor Kevin Allen declared that he was substituting for Councillor Mo Marsh. 
 
9b. Declarations of Interests 
 
9.2 There were none. 
 
9c. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
9.3 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (‘the Act’), the 

Licensing Committee (Non Licensing Act 2003 Functions) considered whether the press 
and public should be excluded from the meeting during an item of business on the 
grounds that it was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press or public were present during 
that item, there would be disclosure to them of confidential information (as defined in 
section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information (as defined in section 100(1) of the 
Act). 

 
9.4 RESOLVED – That the press and public be not excluded.  
 
10. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
10.1 RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2009 be signed by the 

Chairman as a correct record. 

1



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 NOVEMBER 2009 

 
11. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
11.1 The Chairman updated the Committee that in June 2009 BTec and NVQ courses for 

new taxi drivers were available at no extra cost to the applicants. Applicants could now 
apply for funding for these courses, even if they had received funding for other courses 
and most providers were able to fund a percentage of the costs for those who could not 
access Central Government funding. The Learning and Skills Council had temporarily 
withdrawn its funding due to concerns about fraud and abuse however. 

 
 Officers had considered spreading the costs of payments for these courses to help 

applicants. If other trainers were required to be identified however, this would require 
reversing the previous Committee decision and assessing new training materials and 
methods, which would be at a cost to the Council, although this could be recoverable at 
a later stage from the applicants. 

 
11.2 The Chairman noted position for taxi driver and stated that since that since the last 

Licensing Committee, officers in the Hackney Carriage Office have suspended two 
drivers and revoked five drivers licences. Two drivers were also issued with a final 
warning which will remain on their licence for 5 years. The suspensions were as a result 
of medical problems. 

 
12. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
12.1 There were none. 
 
13. HACKNEY CARRIAGES UNMET DEMAND SURVEY 
 
13.1 The Committee considered a report from the Director of Environment regarding the 

Hackney Carriages Unmet Demand Survey (for a copy see minute book). 
 
13.2 The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing, Mr Nichols, began by summarising 

the report and stating that all options were open for Members to consider, including 
restricting numbers, delimiting and maintaining managed growth. He stated that from 
experience the policy of managed growth had served the authority well over the years, 
but noted the current financial climate, which led to uncertainty in the business 
environment of the city. 

 
 Mr Nichols went on to say that the wheelchair access vehicles report dealt with a 

number of possibilities presented by the “trade”, including options that any new licenses 
issued should be wheelchair accessible vehicles and that one vehicle should be 
required to go on the larger circuit. Other considerations included requiring at least 5 per 
cent of vehicles to be wheelchair accessible and to put a requirement on the private hire 
trade for new entrants to have wheelchair accessible vehicles. Finally, an option to 
reduce the licence fee for wheelchair accessible vehicles could be considered. Mr 
Nichols introduced Ms Eccles, Consultant from Halcrow Group Limited, to present the 
Unmet Demand Survey. 

 
13.3 Ms Eccles gave a presentation to the Committee and highlighted that there was no 

observed unmet demand in the city. Through Stakeholder consultation it had been 

2



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 NOVEMBER 2009 

identified that there were problems around the lack of ranks in the city, with suggestions 
for new ranks to be implemented.  

 
There was a similar latent demand value for taxi users with and without mobility 
impairment although waiting times for a disabled accessible vehicle were almost four 
times that of a standard vehicle. She concluded that an extra 428 disabled accessible 
vehicles would be needed to alleviate this discrepancy.  
 
Ms Eccles stated that the Committee were able to continue with the limited growth 
policy, issuing wheelchair accessible licences in any number to alleviate demand; issue 
any number of licences for either regular or wheelchair accessible vehicles; or remove 
the limited growth policy altogether. 

 
13.4 Mr Nichols noted that the Alcohol Support Partnership had achieved funding from 

Central Government to provide taxi marshals in the city centre. A tendering process was 
currently underway and the Marshals would be working with Sussex Police as part of 
Operation Marble. 

 
13.5 Councillor West noted that it appeared from the report that taxi usage was increasing 

faster than taxi availability. He asked if this was the case how could there be no unmet 
demand in the city. Ms Eccles replied that since the last survey had been conducted 
there had been an increase in taxi usage. However, it appeared that these people were 
waiting less time for a taxi; therefore there was no increase in demand. 

 
13.6 Councillor West noted that over 13 per cent of people had given up waiting for a taxi and 

felt this was significant enough to suggest there was an unmet demand in the city. Ms 
Eccles replied that this related to patent demand. For the purposes of the survey latent 
demand was also considered and the figures were not considered significant enough to 
suggest there was an unmet demand in the city. 

 
13.7 Councillor Mrs Theobald noted that there did not seem to be enough female drivers 

available at night and asked if this was being looked into. She also noted that whilst 
there was a need for more wheelchair accessible vehicles, many currently in operation 
were too high for those with differing abilities to access. She felt that taxi drivers needed 
training on assisting those with varying degrees of physical ability. Ms Eccles agreed 
that increasing the number of women drivers was an issue that needed more focus. 

 
13.8 Councillor Older asked what effect maintaining the same number of licences would have 

on the availability of wheelchair accessible vehicles. The Chairman replied that any 
resolution passed by the Committee could include provisions for wheelchair accessible 
vehicles if desired. She felt that the report demonstrated there were sufficient wheelchair 
accessible vehicles, but that there was a lack of drivers willing to pick these customers 
up. She felt this was an issue that needed to be addressed by the taxi trade. 

 
13.9 Councillor Kitcat asked whether the public consultation asked whether the public would 

welcome taxi marshalling as a separate issue to whether they would be willing to pay for 
taxi marshalling. Ms Eccles replied that a number of options were offered when the 
question about safety in the city was posed, including Taxi marshalling.  

 

3



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 NOVEMBER 2009 

13.10 Councillor Pidgeon asked why no thought had been given in the survey to those of 
differing abilities, including blind people. He stated that some wheelchair accessible 
vehicles were extremely difficult to access for blind people and felt there was a need to 
look into this. 

 
13.11 Councillor Lepper noted that some people surveyed felt unsafe when using a taxi and 

asked for further details on this. She noted that many drivers felt unsafe when working 
at night and would like CCTV available in their taxis. Ms Eccles stated that both groups 
were asked about feelings of safety for the survey, and she noted that drivers felt 
especially unsafe in certain parts of the city. 

 
13.12 Councillor Simson felt there was very little unmet demand for Hackney Carriages in the 

city. She felt that every vehicle should be able to accommodate different needs in some 
way but did not feel there was a sufficient lack of these vehicles in the Hackney Trade. 
She felt that the issue with wheelchair accessible vehicles was primarily a Private Hire 
one, as many disabled people relied on booking private hire vehicles. She believed 
incentives were needed to encourage the Private Hire trade to make more disabled 
accessible vehicles available. The Chairman noted that this had been put to the Taxi 
Forum, but had been a difficult issue to discuss. 

 
13.13 The Chairman gave Mr Andy Cheeseman from City Cabs permission to address the 

Committee meeting. Mr Cheeseman stated that the Fiat Doblo could be bought for 
under £10,000 and this was an option considered by the trade, however there were 
perceived safety issues of rear loading. The Hackney Carriage Officer, Mr Seymour 
stated that there were concerns about driver and passenger safety with rear loading 
vehicles being used and noted that the crumple zone for the vehicle was also situated in 
the rear. 

 
13.14 Ms De Moulins from the Brighton & Hove Disabled Federation was given permission to 

address the Committee meeting. She stated that there was an evident need for better 
access to disabled accessible vehicles as it was not fair that disabled people had to wait 
nearly four times as long for a taxi to arrive. 

 
13.15 Councillor Wrighton felt that more encouragement needed to be given to female drivers 

to increase their numbers in the trade and Ms Eccles supported this view, stating that 
through consultation between 50-60 per cent of people wanted a female driver. 

 
13.16 Councillor Wrighton raised issues around safety at night and asked if all taxi drivers 

were CRB checked. Mr Seymour replied that they were checked every three years. 
 
13.17 Councillor Harmer-Strange noted there had been issues around training of drivers 

whose standards of English were not high. Mr Seymour replied that new applicants were 
now assessed on literacy to ensure they could take the BTec training appropriately. 

 
13.18 Councillor Hawkes felt that the Fiat Doblo needed to be considered seriously as an 

option for drivers. She stated that rear loading vehicles were already used safely by 
social services and there was a need to look at how access to disabled vehicles could 
be improved. The Authority needed to consider how the private hire trade could be 
encouraged to provide more disabled accessible vehicles and she noted that elderly or 
frail people often preferred more accessible vehicles.  

4



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 NOVEMBER 2009 

 
13.19 Councillor Kitcat asked if the English literacy training only applied to new applicants to 

the trade and Mr Seymour confirmed this. 
 
13.20 Councillor Kitcat asked why there were issues around the taxi lights and Mr Seymour 

stated that the taxi light on the top of the vehicle was linked to the metre. At times the 
light was on (i.e. indicating the taxi was available to hire), but the driver would be on 
route to a job and so technically was not available. This had caused confusion and 
frustration for some members of the public. He suggested a manual switch to turn the 
light off to resolve this problem. 

 
13.21 Councillor Watkins noted that there were many serious issues around accessibility of 

vehicles and also around the training of drivers in providing a good service. He felt that 
once a passenger was accepted into a taxi, it was the drivers’ responsibility to keep 
them safe in whatever way was necessary. He was concerned that there was no 
requirement for repeat training once a driver had their licence and he felt the Council 
should do more to consider the issues around provisions for disable people. Ms Eccles 
stated that conditions could not be placed on a taxi licence, and so there could be no 
requirement for retraining of taxi drivers once their licence was approved. 

 
13.22 Mr John Oram, Chairman of Streamline Taxis was given permission to address the 

Committee meeting. He stated that he understood there were issues around the 
provision of wheelchair accessible vehicles but felt that the main problems were 
associated with the private hire trade. He stated that rear loading vehicles were 
significantly cheaper for the trade to finance and wanted this option looked into in more 
detail. 

 
13.23 Councillor West believed that the policy of limiting the numbers of licensed plated issued 

should continue. He believed there was support for this among the Hackney Carriage 
trade and it would maintain the quality of service enjoyed by the city and allow the 
Council to promote more accessibility. He felt there was a clear need for more training 
for drivers however, and felt that better customer service for customers with disabilities 
was needed. The loss of ranks across the city was worrying and more joined up thinking 
was needed on this, as the taxi service supported the night time economy and 
sustainable transport planning for the city. He felt there was clearly an unmet demand 
for disabled people and waiting times were an issue, but the problems lay mainly with 
the private hire trade. 

 
 Councillor West proposed an alternative recommendation, seconded by Councillor 

Watkins as follows: 
 
 1. That officers prepare a report to the Licensing Committee on: 
 

a. All new licensed Private Hire vehicles being required by condition to be 
able to carry a wheelchair using customer whilst those customers were sat 
in their chair; 

 
b. All large Hackney Carriage firms be required to meet a percentage quota 

of disabled accessible vehicles on their books. 
 

5



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 NOVEMBER 2009 

2. That the Council increases the number of Hackney carriage vehicles by 5 
annually. 

 
13.24 A vote was taken on the alternative recommendation and failed. 
 
13.25 Councillor Simson stated that she agreed with much of what Councillor West had said, 

but could not support increasing the number of plates by 5 a year. She stated that there 
were many taxi drivers currently with not enough work to do and felt that if numbers 
were increased too much it would create more problems for the authority. She added 
that current licence holders would also hire other people to use their cars, increasing the 
number of taxi drivers available on the roads.  

 
13.26 Councillor Lepper stated that she had also given much thought to the number of plates 

the Committee should increase by, and had considered not increasing the number at all 
for this year. She felt the taxi service was very efficient. She used taxis regularly and did 
not find she had to wait long periods. The report found no unmet demand and therefore 
she believed that only a minor increase in plate numbers could be justified, and she 
would not be able to support an increase of 5. She recognised the issues around 
disabled accessible vehicles and believed that any increase in plate numbers should be 
linked to providing more accessible vehicles on the circuit. 

 
13.27 Councillor Hawkes stated she considered not increasing the plate numbers, but was 

keen to see more disabled accessible vehicles on the circuit, and therefore would 
support a small increase in these types of vehicles. 

 
13.28 The Chairman put the recommendations in the report to the vote in the order they were 

listed in the report. 
 
13.29 RESOLVED – To increase the number of hackney carriage vehicle licences issued by 

the Council by a reduced number of 2 annually (or such number as the committee 
advises), such licences to be issued in May each year commencing in May 2010. 

 
 
14. HACKNEY CARRIAGES/PRIVATE HIRE TRADE ETHNICITY MONITORING 
 
14.1 The Committee considered a report from the Director of Environment on Hackney 

Carriage/Private Hire Trade Ethnicity Monitoring (for copy see minute book). 
 
14.2 Mr Nichols summarised the report and stated that ethnicity monitoring was undertaken 

to ensure that the waiting list is operated in a fair and transparent way as recommended 
by the Equality and Human Rights Commission. 

 
14.3 RESOLVED – That the ethnic monitoring results are noted. 
 
15. STREET TRADING POLICY 
 
15.1 The Committee considered a report from the Director of Environment regarding the 

Street Trading Policy (for a copy see minute book). 
 

6



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 NOVEMBER 2009 

15.2 The Licensing Manager, Ms Cranford, began by stating that the updated policy made 
conditions for street trading more transparent and enforceable. At the April 2009 
meeting of the Licensing Committee officers were asked to undertake further 
consultation. Dorothy Stringer School had asked for an exclusion zone in June 2004 but 
this had not been approved as there was a concern it could affect the livelihoods of 
individuals. 

 
15.3 Councillor Kitcat asked why the 100 metre restrictions on street traders selling similar 

items had been removed. Ms Cranford replied that this was no longer relevant as the 
types of items street traders sold could now also be bought in shops and there were no 
exclusions on this. 

 
15.4 Councillor Kitcat stated that he could not support the suggestion by Dorothy Springer to 

impose exclusion zones on street traders around schools. He added that healthy eating 
was a good idea to promote but believed that this could best be achieved via education 
and not licensing powers to exclude where street traders could trade. He was concerned 
that this might have unintended consequences on other traders if pursued. Ms Cranford 
stated that the Health Eating Team at the Council could discuss options with street 
traders where appropriate. 

 
15.5 Councillor Older asked whether Chestnut sellers were restricted to certain areas and 

whether a trader needed a licence to sell goods in front of their shop. Mr Nichols replied 
that the consent streets were the only places where this activity was allowed. Front of 
shops were exempt from street trading policies as they were technically deemed a part 
of the shop and the authority would have to prove beyond all reasonable doubt that the 
trader was trading illegally. 

 
15.6 Councillor Simson asked about the waiting list for trading sites and Mr Nichols replied 

that it was very static. Most people on the list were waiting for specific sites to become 
available, but it was difficult for officers to assess which sites would be desirable as this 
was usually down to personal circumstances. There was a natural wastage of sites as 
they were not taken up by those on the waiting list. 

 
15.7 Councillor Lepper stated that Dorothy Stringer School owned Stringer Way and it would 

be their responsibility to enforce any internal school policies. Mr Nichols agreed that this 
was correct. 

 
15.8 RESOLVED – That the street trading policy as set out in appendix 1 is agreed. 
 
16. POLICING AND CRIME BILL - SEX ESTABLISHMENTS CONSULTATION 
 
16.1 The Committee considered a report from the Director of Environment regarding the 

Policing and Crime Bill – Sex Establishment Consultation (for a copy see minute book). 
 
16.2 Mr Nichols began by stating that controls on this trade had been discussed by the 

Committee in the past and that if the recommendations were approved this could result 
in current licences having to reapply under the new regime. 

 
16.3 Councillor Lepper stated that this Bill was excellent and a triumph for local authorities. 

She paid tribute to the work done by the Fawcett Society and Object to ensure that sex 

7



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 NOVEMBER 2009 

workers received greater protection. Councillor Lepper expressed concern over the 
number of exemptions allowed for public houses in a year but noted the ministerial 
rights to remove this if exploited by the industry. She felt that the existing licences 
should have to reapply under the new regime, but would not like to see them 
criminalised in the interim. Mr Nichols stated that if the existing licence was refused 
under the new regime, the sex establishment would then be criminalised. 

 
16.4 Councillor Wrighton welcomed the proposals to control these establishments and she 

had existing problems within her ward. She believed that consideration needed to be 
given to the impact an establishment had in an area and the prominence of these sites. 
She felt that residents’ safety needed to be given due weight. Mr Nichols replied that sex 
establishments would be considered under the same regime as sex shops and so 
Members would be able to consider appropriate areas for these establishments. 
External appearance and appropriateness could also be considered and he noted that 
the policy would go to Full Council for approval. 

 
16.5 Councillor Simson expressed concern over the current operation of sex shops and felt 

that a lot had been approved in inappropriate areas, which had not come to a licensing 
panel. She felt that many were no longer discreet and the products they advertised were 
explicit, and there was a need to gain control of this. Mr Nichols replied that the 
definition of a sex shop was a shop selling sex items to a significant degree. Significant 
degree was not defined in the law however and many shops operated on the margins of 
what was allowable. If there were complaints about particular shops, officers would 
investigate however. 

 
16.6 Councillor Watkins asked if licence holders had a right of appeal if their licence was 

refused and Mr Nichols replied that if this was the case, it would most likely be to the 
Magistrates Court. 

 
16.7 RESOLVED –  
 

1. That the Committee responds to the questions in the consultation as follows: 
a) The new regime should apply to existing operators but the licensing authority is 

concerned that existing operators may have an expectation that their current 
business should not be criminalised. 

 
b) The timetable is appropriate. 
 
c) The proposed approach for existing operators is acceptable. 
 
d) Any conditions related to relevant entertainment should be passed to the new 

Sex Encounter Establishment licence. 
 
e) Current sex encounter provision created by local London legislation is 

inapplicable outside London. 
 
f) LLA does not apply in the city. 
 
g) There are no objections to the commencement dates. 
 

8



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 NOVEMBER 2009 

h) The impact assessment appears reasonable. 
 

2. That regulation of sex encounter establishments continues to be supported by 
Licensing Committee.  

 
3. That Licensing Panels continue to be guided by the statement of licensing policy 

including the imposition of conditions applicable to lap dancing clubs in 
determining applications until overtaken by the Policing & Licensing Bill.  

 
4. That the Committee recommends to Council to adopt provisions relating to sex 

encounter venues, if the Policing and Crime Bill is enacted. 
 
17. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO COUNCIL 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 17.00 hours. 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Dated this day of  
 

9



10



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
(NON LICENSING ACT 2003 

FUNCTIONS) 

Agenda Item 22 
 

 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

  

Subject: Taxi Marshals 

Date of Meeting: 4 March 2010 

Report of: Director of Environment 

Contact Officer: Name:  Jean Cranford Tel: 29-2550 

 E-mail: jean.cranford@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 This report seeks committee approval to amend hackney carriage vehicle 

fees to cover the cost of taxi marshals. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

  
2.1 That the committee approves a hackney carriage vehicle fee of £203 

including a £23 supplement to fund taxi marshalling. 
 
2.2 That the Director is authorised to arrange necessary publication of notices. 
  
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 On 27th November 2008, a report was submitted to Licensing Committee (Non-

Licensing Act 2003), seeking an increase in fares to fund taxi marshalling 
following a successful trial period of taxi marshalling funded via the Sudanese 
Taxi Forum.  The estimated cost for providing taxi marshals at that time was 
approximately £43,000 p.a.  Minutes show “15.8 The Members felt that this 
measure was worthwhile implementing but it should be funded by all interested 
stakeholders and partners in the city and that Cabinet should look more closely 
into options for funding the scheme. 
 
“15.9  RESOLVED – to recommend that the Director of Environment does 

not include the vehicle licence fee in the standing charges used in the 
formula to calculate the maximum normal daytime fare for hackney 
carriages”. 

 
3.2 During 2009, a one-off £5,000 funding for taxi marshals was obtained from 

the Home Office via the Community Safety Partnership.  This enabled two 
teams of taxi marshals to operate at taxi ranks agreed as part of Operation 
Marble between 20th November 2009 and 31st March 2010.    The 
Managing Director of City Cabs tendered and appointed a local security 
firm.  The Operation Marble inspector was given deployment authority to 

11



complement policing of three busy city centre ranks: West Street, East 
Street and Old Ship Hotel.  Sussex Police were pleased with this facility. 

 
3.3 At Taxi Forum on 13th January 2010, taxi marshals were discussed again.  

Members of the forum agreed that taxi marshals assist the general public, 
Sussex Police and taxi drivers.  From recent experience, costs for providing 
two teams of taxi marshals for a year were now found to have reduced and 
would be approximately £12,000 and that if this were split between the 
hackney carriage vehicle licence holders, it would cost £23 per year per 
hackney carriage vehicle licence holder.  This would mean that the current 
fee of £180 would increase to £203 per year.  The forum agreed that this 
would be acceptable and asked officers to bring this recommendation to 
committee for approval. 

 
4. CONSULTATION: 
 
4.1 Increase in fees impacts upon livelihoods so consultation must take place with 

interested parties. 
 
4.2 Brighton & Hove City Council’s Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Forum, 

council’s finance officer and legal services. 
 

4.3 Sussex Police comment:  From the police perspective, the new scheme has 
been well received by the trade, members of the public and police officers who 
are now released from this critical role and able to revert to their core duties, in 
support of the night time economy.  Financial support from the taxi companies is 
welcomed and appropriate as a sustainable way forward. Chief Inspector Simon 
Nelson and Sgt Peter Castleton. 

 
4.4 The published notice gives 28 days for objections to be lodged.  If objections are 

made and not withdrawn, a report will be made to the committee to consider 
objections and any variation of the fee. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
 Financial Implications: 
  
5.1 Revenue: The net effect on the council’s revenue budget should be nil, as the 

increased revenue received will cover the cost of providing the marshals.  
 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw  Date: 21/01/2010 

  
 Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 The power to fix fees for hackney carriages is under Section 65 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  
 
 Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell  Date: 04/02/2010 

12



 
 Equalities Implications: 
  
5.3 Safe late night transport protects passengers in vulnerable situations.  
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
  
5.4 The role of the taxi trade is included in the Local Transport Plan which identifies it 

as a key element in providing sustainable transport choices.  Funding taxi 
marshals by including the cost in the hackney carriage vehicle licence fee would 
make provision of taxi marshals a sustainable option rather than ad hoc as and 
when funding streams have been successfully applied for. 

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  
5.5 Sufficient late night transport to reduce public place violent crime is recognised in 

the community safety, crime reduction and drugs strategy.  Taxi marshals also 
enable Sussex Police, via Operation Marble, to operate in areas away from ranks 
with taxi marshals. 

 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 The transport industry should be safe, profitable and be a positive experience for 

residents and visitors. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.7 Tourism needs to provide a warm welcome to visitors and the tourism strategy 

depends upon effective partnerships with transport operators particularly, to 
achieve safe late night dispersal for the night time economy.

13



 

  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices:  
 
None. 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms:  
 
None. 
  
Background Documents: 
 
None. 
 

14



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
(NON LICENSING ACT 2003 
FUNCTIONS) 

Agenda Item 23 
 

 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

  

Subject: Blue Book Review 

Date of Meeting: 4 March 2010 

Report of: Director of Environment 

Contact Officer: Name:  Martin Seymour Tel: 29-6659 

 E-mail: martin.seymour@brighton-hove.gov.uk    

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 To review byelaws, conditions advice and information for Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire, Drivers, Vehicles and Operators contained in the blue 
handbook (The Blue Book). 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

2.1 That Committee approve items 1-3 (Appendix A) pending full review of the 
handbook - 2nd Edition.  

  
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 

3.1 The Council licenses Hackney Carriage and Private Hire, Drivers, Vehicles, 
and Private Hire Operators. The authority for doing so is by adoption of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Part II., (Section 
45), The Town Police Clauses Act 1847, (Section 68) and the Public Health 
Act 1875, (Section 171). 

 

3.2 The handbook (Blue Book) was designed to combine many bye laws, 
conditions, advice and information for hackney carriage and private hire 
drivers, vehicles and operators previously in various and separate forms 
and was first approved by committee in February 2007.  

  

3.2 Any amendments, changes or additions approved and issued by the council 
to this handbook must be attached to the inside of this cover and treated as 
if they are part of the handbook. 

 

3.3 It is best practice to review any policies adopted by the council every three 
years. The handbook should therefore be reviewed during 2010. Some 
conditions will be amended for the 2nd edition to reflect current working 

15



practices and changes in legislation. Other minor alterations will be made to 
wording and sequencing in order to make the book more user friendly. 

 

3.4 It is intended that the handbook will be produced in a booklet format and 
made available for all hackney carriage & private hire, drivers, proprietors & 
operators. 

 
4. CONSULTATION: 

 
4.1 The matter has been discussed at the council’s Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire Consultation Forum. The forum was in support of the 
amendments contained in appendix B. The council also wishes to 
acknowledge the help and advice given by NALEO (National Association of 
Licensing Enforcement Officers) in drafting the first edition. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:  
 
5.1 Financial Implications: 

 
 Any costs associated with producing the 2nd Edition Blue Book will be met 

from existing revenue budgets.  
  
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 25/01/2010 
 
5.2 Legal Implications: 
 
 These are covered in the body of the report. 
 
 Lawyer: Rebecca Sidell   Date:  04/02/10 
 
5.3 Equalities Implications: 
 

As a service provider, the council provides high quality services to meet the 
diverse needs of Brighton and Hove residents.  Equally accessible to all, it 
also uses its influence with partners to further the principles beyond it’s own 
operation.  The needs of minority groups will need to be considered, whilst 
still achieving the aims of the licensing regime. 

 
5.4 Sustainability Implications: 
 

 The role of the taxi trade is included in the Local Transport Plan, which 
identifies it as a key element in providing sustainable transport choices.  It 
creates important links in the transport network to other forms of sustainable 
transport providing a seamless connection.  It will contribute to three of the 
government’s four shared transport priorities – reducing congestion, 
improving air quality and accessibility.  Use of taxis for school transport, 
licensed vehicles using bus lanes, locating ranks at railway stations and the 
city coach station, approved use of liquid petroleum gas all contribute to 
reducing congestion and moving passengers quickly.   

16



  
5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
 Sufficient late night transport to reduce public place violent crime is 

recognised in the community safety, crime reduction and drugs strategy. 
The presence of CCTV can be an important means of deterring and 
detecting crime. 

 
5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
    The transport industry should be safe, profitable and be a positive 

experience for residents and visitors. 
 
5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
      Tourism needs to provide a warm welcome to visitors and the tourism    
           Strategy depends upon effective partnership with transport operators 

particularly to achieve safe late night dispersal for the night time economy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices:  
 
A. Recommendations. 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms:  
 
None. 
  
Background Documents: 
 
None. 

18



 
Item 23: Appendix A 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

1. The proprietor must ensure that all drivers of the vehicle are adequately 
trained in the embarking, disembarking and safe carriage of passengers in 
wheelchairs. Proprietors must be able to demonstrate to the Authorised 
Officer that training has been provided upon demand.  

 

2. Vehicles should normally have an engine capacity of at least 1600cc.  

 

3. Where a licensed vehicle is also registered as a taxi bus additional livery required 
for registration will be allowed and/or additional livery as approved by the Director 
of the Environment to show the vehicle is a Taxi Bus. 

19



20


	Agenda
	19 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	22 Taxi Marshals
	23 Blue Book Review

